
 
 
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2025 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

January 21, 2025, Regular Meeting 
January 21, 2025, Closed Session 

 1 

 3 APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 4, 2025, AGENDA   15 
5:35 4 PUBLIC COMMENT 

    – Will last up to 1-hour dependent on number of speakers 
CHAIRMAN EGGERS 17 

5:40 5 WATAUGA COUNTY SCHOOLS 2024-2025 CIP FUNDS 
REQUEST 

MR. JOSEPH NASH 19 

5:45 6 WATAUGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT MS. MONICA CARUSO 21 
5:50 7 PROPOSED APPROPRIATION OF STATE FUNDS FOR SENIOR 

CENTERS 
MS. ANGIE BOITNOTTE 33 

5:55 8 EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
A. Bid Award for Comprehensive Disaster Recovery 

Management Services 
B. Proposed Resolution Authorizing the Disaster 

Applicant’s Form 

MR. WILL HOLT  
47 

 
181 

6:00 9 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Resolution Authorizing the Advertisement 

of A Lease with Red Cross  
B. Referral of Fire Appendices to Planning Board  
C. Annual Pre-Budget Retreat Tentative Agenda 
D. Boards and Commissions 
E. Announcements  

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
185 

 
195 
197 
201 
203 

6:05 10 BREAK  203 
6:10 11 CLOSED SESSION 

    Attorney/Client Matters per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
   Land Acquisition per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i) 

 205 

6:30 12 ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
January 21, 2025, Regular Meeting 
January 21, 2025, Closed Session 
 
 
 
 

  

020425 BCC Meeting

1



DRAFT 
MINUTES 

  

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 21, 2025 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
January 21, 2025, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
Chairman Eggers called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.  The following were present: 
 

PRESENT:  Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Todd Castle, Vice-Chairman 

   Tim Hodges, Commissioner 
   Ronnie Marsh, Commissioner 
   Nathan Miller, County Attorney 

Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 
[Clerk’s Note:  Commissioner Greene was not in attendance due to a prior engagement.] 

 
Vice-Chairman Castle opened with a prayer and Commissioner Marsh, led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Eggers presented a correction to the December 2, 2024, regular meeting minutes and 
called for additions and/or corrections to the December 17, 2024, regular meeting and closed 
session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the 
December 2, 2024, regular meeting minutes as corrected. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the 
December 17, 2024, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

2



Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the 
December 17, 2024, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Eggers called for additions and/or corrections to the January 21, 2025, agenda. 
 
Commissioner Marsh requested to add a special announcement under announcements.  County 
Attorney Miller stated that Attorney/Client matters in closed session would include discussion on 
pending litigation as follows:  24 CVM 198 Brandy Boyles and Keller vs. North America.  
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to approve the 
January 21, 2025, agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION SUPPORTING FUNDING FOR REPAIRS AND STRATEGIC 
IMPLEMENTATION OF BLUE RIDGE RISING ALONG THE BLUE RIDGE PARKWAY 
No one was in attendance to present the proposed resolution. 

REQUEST TO ESTABLISH CAPITAL RESERVE FUND FOR TRANSFER STATION 
Mr. Chris Marriott, Operations Services Director, requested the adoption of a proposed resolution 
to establish and maintain a reserve fund in the amount of $66,445.  The fund was required by State 
Law and the Department of Environmental Quality’s (DEQ) rules.  The fund would be used for 
post closure of the transfer station.  The funds would be designated from the retained earnings of 
the Sanitation Department.  Mr. Marriott stated that an annual escalator would be used to determine 
the amount required to be in the fund and additional funds would be added to reach that amount. 
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented and to authorize the designation of $66,445 from retained earnings to establish the 
reserve account. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

020425 BCC Meeting

3



TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 

County Manager Geouque, on behalf of Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, who was out due to a 
death in his family, presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of December 2024.  The 
report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was required. 
 

B. Refunds and Releases 

County Manager Geouque, on behalf of Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, presented the Refunds 
and Releases Report for December 2024 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for December 2024 as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
C. Proposed Resolution to Terminate/Appoint Plat Review Officers 

County Manager Geouque, on behalf of Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, presented a resolution 
which would remove Mr. Larry Warren (recently retired) and Eric Saule (recently left 
employment), as Plat Review Officers and appoint Mr. Tyler Rash and Laramie Ward as Plat 
Review Officers.  Adopting the proposed resolution would give Mr. Rash and Ms. Ward the 
authority to review plats prior to recording, and to determine if the plats meet statutory 
requirements for recording. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to adopt the resolution to 
terminate/appoint plat review officers as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
D. Settlement Through December 2024 

Per G. S. 105-373 (d) and with the retirement of Larry Warren, County Manager Geouque 
presented a settlement of the Tax Collector through December 2024.  Mr. Warren had prepared 
the settlement to close out records through his tenure with the County. 
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the Tax Collectors 
Settlement through December 2024 as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

020425 BCC Meeting

4



FINANCE MATTERS 
A. Budget Amendments 

County Manager Geouque, who also serves as Finance Director, presented the following budget 
amendments: 
 
Account # Description Debit Credit 
    

213991-399101 Fund Balance Appropriation  $12,337,307 
219800-498050 Transfer to Emergency 911 Project $12,337,307  
273980-398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund  $12,337,307 
506120-458000 Capital Outlay $12,337,307  
    

The amendment moved funds from CIP – Future County Buildings to the Emergency 911 
Project fund. 
 

103991-399100 Fund Balance  $6,575,583 
109800-498021 Transfer to Capital Projects Fund $6,575,583  
213980-398100 Transfer from General Fund  $6,575,583 
219930-461100 Emergency Communications $6,575,583  
    

The amendment transferred funds to Capital Reserve from unassigned fund balance from the FY 
2024 audit as approved at the December 17, 2024, Board meeting. 
    

105911-499100 Additional Appropriation – Watauga County 
Schools $1,800,000  

213991-399101 Fund Balance Appropriation  $1,800,000 
219800-498010 Transfer to General Fund $1,800,000  
103980-398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund  $1,800,000 
    

The amendment transferred funds from Capital Reserve for Watauga County Schools long-term 
needs for funding of current expenses. 
    

105911-471000 Lottery Funds  $300,000 
103300-349909 Lottery Funds Revenue  $1,005,000 
105911-470045 Carpet and Tile $45,000  
105911-470043 Roof Renovations $80,000  
105911-470078 Fire Alarm Replacements $140,000  
105911-470018 Door Access Controls $60,000  
105911-470020 Parkway Addition $500,000  
105911-470038 Cafeteria Equipment  $75,000  
105911-470037 Gym Floors $25,000  
105911-470019 Doors/Windows Replacements $20,000  
105911-470041 Pavement and Sidewalk Repairs $80,000  
105911-470077 Softball/Baseball Field Lighting $180,000  
105911-470079 Fencing Replacements $100,000  
    

The amendment recognized lottery funds requested and approved at the October 15, 2024, Board 
meeting. 
 
 
 

 
  

020425 BCC Meeting

5



103300-332006 SHIIP Grant  $4,878 
105550-449901 SHIIP Grant Expenses $4,878  
    

The amendment recognized the acceptance of the State Health Insurance Information Program 
(SHIIP) grant funds as approved at the November 19, 2024, Board meeting.  No local match 
was required. 
    

Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to approve the amendments as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
B. 2024 Carry-Forward Purchase Orders 

Mr. Deron Geouque, County Manager/Finance Director, presented carry-forward purchase orders 
for 2024 as follows: 
 

Account Description Purpose Amount 
104130-439500 Employee Training Finance Training $6,915.00 
104141-469500 Vincent Valuations Tax Revaluation $172,468.00 
104199-469103 Clark Nexsen Facilities Study $3,750.00 
104199-499100 Contingency Hurricane Helene Damages $525,000.00 
104210-429000 IT Election Printers $2,500.00 
104261-435100 Muter Construction Roof Replacement at Courthouse $30,925.42 
104261-435100 Courthouse Repairs Tile and Floor Replacement $17,000.00 

104261-435200 
HVAC/Chiller Replacement 
at Courthouse 

HVAC/Chiller Replacement at 
Courthouse $90,191.69 

104265-435101 Tri-County Paving Paving at Hannah Building $353,509.58 
104267-435200 HVAC Health Dept HVAC $50,000.00 

104269-435200 HVAC Finishing Replacing HVAC at 
Library $25,574.00 

104269-435200 Alpha Energy Solutions 
Replace Air Conditioning at 
Library and Floor Scrubber $80,491.09 

104273-435101 Signage for Parking Parking Lots Signage $1,000.00 
104273-458000 Parking Deck Finish County Parking Deck $864,824.24 

104274-435100 West Annex Upgrades 
Ceiling Tiles and LED Lighting, 
Equipment at West Annex $39,020.00 

104275-435100 Human Services 
Finish Interior Renovations and 
Upgrade Access Controls $289,621.00 

104275-435100 Custom Coatings Exterior Stucco Repair $6,980.00 
104275-435101 Tri-County Paving Paving Human Services Building $73,769.00 

104277-435100 LEC Repairs 
Tile Work and Pods, Painting, 
Floor Replacement And Roof 
Replacement at LEC 

$244,342.17 

104283-XXXXX Hoffman Materials Infield Mix for Fields $13,310.00 

020425 BCC Meeting

6



104283-XXXXX Field Renovations Field Renovations $95,476.00 
104285-435101 Tri-County Paving Paving Brookshire $185,361.26 

104287-435100 Soccer Complex Repairs 
Replace Gutters, Netting and 
Downspouts $16,417.00 

104310-451001 Flock Group Inc Leo Camera System $3,769.89 
104310-454000 Dana Safety Upfitting Police Vehicles $32,082.10 
104311-451XXX Emergency Management EM Communications Expansion $4,333,000.00 

104311-451000 Motorola Solutions 
Astro Technical Assistance Path 
Surveys $84,000.00 

104320-422000 Watauga Medical Center Detention Meals $30,581.65 

104320-469102 Competent Correctional 
Care Medical Services $21,573.00 

104350-426000 Planning and Inspections 
Code Books 

Planning and Inspections Code 
Books $4,000.00 

104920-463300 Child Care Study Child Care Study $45,000.00 
104920-463300 Workforce Housing Workforce Housing $24,845.00 
104960-449902 Soil and Water Bill Edmisten Fund $2,340.00 
104960-449919 Soil and Water Stream Restoration Grant $28,245.00 

105550-XXXXX POA 
SHIIP, Exxon, ARPA And 
Senior Center Grants $46,200.56 

105890-463340 WAMY Rental Housing 
Program 

WAMY Rental Housing 
Program $86,250.00 

105911-470049 Watauga County School 
Roof Replacement 

Watauga County School Roof 
Replacement $2,000,000.00 

106120-XXXXX Parks and Rec 
Contracted Services for Camp 
and Programs, Camp Supplies, 
Senior Games 

$37,900.00 

145310-449902 Foster Care Discretionary 
Funds Foster Care Discretionary Funds $592.00 

145310-449903 Adult Protective Services Adult Protective Services $1,514.00 
145410-440006 Adoption Promotion Grant Adoption Promotion Grant $156,062.00 
145310-449904 CPS Discretionary Funds CPS Discretionary Funds $2,292.00 
264330-425000 Motorola E-911 Radios  $49,985.34 
667420-455002 Charlotte Scale Company Truck Scales $86,095.87 
667420-457000 Carolina Grading and 

Utilities 
Scale House Improvements $24,485.00 

667420-457001 JW Hampton Sediment Basin Improvements $4,957.72 
667420-457001 Transfer Station 

Improvements 
Transfer Station Improvements $1,004,314.14 

667420-457001 McGill Convenience Center 
Improvements 

$14,236.00 

667420-457001 Freedom Electric Materials for Scale House $5,055.60 
667420-457003 PADCO Excavating Storage Improvements $4,242.08 

 

 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

7



Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the 2024 purchase 
order carry-forwards as presented by County Manager/Finance Director Geouque. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
C. Proposed Audit Contract for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025 

Mr. Deron Geouque, Finance Director, will request the Board approve the Fiscal Year 2024-25 
audit contract and engagement letter with C. Randolph, CPA, PLLC. The contract amount of 
$50,600 covers the annual audit.  Adequate funds are available to cover the expenditure. 
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to accept the contract with C. 
Randolph, CPA, PLLC for the County’s FY 2025 audit in the amount of $50,600. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. State of Emergency Termination 

On behalf of Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, County Manager Geouque stated that 
the Hurricane Helene mission was fully in the recovery stage and no longer required the need to 
exercise local emergency powers to deal with the incident (i.e. curfews, etc. local procurement 
flexibilities, etc.).  Staff contacted the North Carolina Emergency Management Western Division 
to ensure lifting of the State of Emergency would not impact FEMA eligibility/reimbursement or 
the status of the disaster declaration since we are one of the 39 declared counties. 
 
Mr. Will Polk, Deputy General Counsel, provided guidance that it is the local jurisdiction’s policy 
call based on the status of the county as to whether they need the declaration to remain in place to 
exercise their local emergency powers to deal with the incident.  As far as the impact on FEMA 
eligibility/reimbursement, if it is one of the 39 declared counties or ECBI in 4827-DR, standing 
down the SOE will not impact its status in the disaster declaration. 
 
The County Manager stated that staff, in concurrence with the County Attorney, recommended the 
State of Emergency be lifted.  County Attorney Miller stated that was correct, he did agree. 
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to terminate the State of 
Emergency as presented by the County Manager. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 

020425 BCC Meeting

8



B. Hurricane Helene Update 

On behalf of Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, County Manager Geouque shared the 
following update on current recovery efforts from Hurricane Helene.   
 

“I would like to offer a brief update on the status of recovery in Watauga County 
from the Emergency Services perspective. Before going any further, I would like to 
personally express my deep gratitude to the multitude of individuals and 
organizations that have stepped up to lead the way in various aspects of recovery 
including rebuilding of our citizen’s personal property and businesses. A few key 
points: 

- County staff continue to work with our insurance provider on coverage limits and 
settlements. We have requested the insurance company to send settlement letters 
as determinations are made to increase speed we can submit to FEMA for any 
gaps. 

- Right-of-way debris removal continues. Due to weather and other factors, we 
have requested and NCEM is in the process of completing an extension on the 
allowable work period for debris removal in the right of way. At time of writing 
this extension is still being processed. 

- Waterway and private property debris removal operations with the Corps of 
Engineers (USACE) has been approved with our project contract to be completed 
within the next 2-3 weeks and then a 45 day permitting process review will begin. 
An initial round of assessments has been completed by USACE and reviewed by 
FEMA for eligibility. Staff now has a solid contact person within USACE who will 
take Watauga County debris removal “from cradle to grave” for waterway and 
private property.  Representative Foxx’s office has been very active on this issue 
and we appreciate her support. 

- Staff is conducting rapid assessments on waterways to give multiple State and 
federal partners access to raw data to determine eligibility for Category A (USACE 
debris removal), EWP, or other potential programs being discussed. 

- Governor Stein has signed an Executive Order directing NCEM and OSBM to 
establish a private road and bridge program. Staff has been in contact with the 
Assistant Director of that division of OSBM and initial planning has begun on how 
to implement that Executive Order. This program is designed to duplicate the 
success seen in the southwest part of the State during the 2022 TS Fred floods. 

- Staff has worked with the County Attorney and regional partners to develop an 
RFP for technical assistance with recovery. The specific focus of this RFP is for 
assistance in the financial recovery surrounding public assistance, hazard 
mitigation, and other complex federal programs. This RFP closes January 21st. 

- As a point of success, DSA teams have completed their work in Watauga County 
but will have staff available for any issues that arise. Teams registered thousands 
of individuals and helped put more than $13M at time of report into the hands of 
our citizens to begin their recovery.  

- The deadline for organizations to apply for Public Assistance (PA) and individuals 
to apply for assistance (IA) have both been extended to February 6th, 2025 

- Transitional Sheltering Assistance (TSA) has been extended until January 25th. 
Senator Budd’s office has been very active in this area and we appreciate his 
efforts on this issue. 

020425 BCC Meeting

9



The Emergency Services Department is grateful for the partnership with our local, 
State, and federal partners specifically as they focus efforts to get money flowing 
into our community to restore what was lost and also build an even more resilient 
future.” 

 
County Manager Geouque stated that two proposals were received for recovery management 
earlier in the day and they would be reviewed and presented at a future meeting. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the contract for debris pickup ends on March 31, 2025; 
however, staff has asked the State for an extension.  The State is looking at doing a blanket 
extension for all 39 affected counties.  
 
The report was for information only; therefore, no action was required at this time. 
 

C. Proposed Dates for Annual Pre-Budget Retreat  

County Manager Geouque stated that the proposed dates for the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat were 
February 27 and 28, 2025, with times proposed from 12–7 P.M. for Thursday and 9 A.M.–1 P.M. 
for Friday.  Two days were required for the Retreat and times and dates could be adjusted 
accordingly. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to schedule the Annual Pre-
Budget Retreat for Thursday, February 27, 2025, beginning at 12:00 P.M. and Friday, February 
28, 2025, beginning at 9:00 A.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
D. Proposed Dates for Budget Work Sessions 

County Manager Geouque stated that two budget work sessions are held each year.  The work 
sessions were scheduled after the Manager’s proposed budget was presented at the first meeting 
in May.  The proposed dates for the budget work sessions were May 8 and 9, with times proposed 
from 12–8 P.M. for the first day and 9 A.M.–1 P.M. for the second day.  Times and dates could be 
adjusted accordingly. 
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to schedule the budget work 
sessions on Thursday, May 8, 2025, beginning at 12:00 P.M. and Friday, May 9, 2025, beginning 
at 9:00 A.M.. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 
 

 

020425 BCC Meeting

10



E. Proposed Resolution Authorizing the Advertisement of A Lease Renewal with 
Daymark Recovery System, Inc. 

County Manager Geouque stated that the lease with Daymark Recovery Services has expired.  
Daymark Recovery Services would like to renew the lease with the same terms and conditions as 
the current lease.  The space to be leased was at the County’s Human Service Building and included 
13,775 square feet.  Daymark agreed to lease the space at the rate of $10 per square foot ($137,750 
per year) in monthly installments of $11,479.17.  The new lease term would be March 1, 2025, to 
February 29, 2028.  Included in the lease under Section 10 was an additional fee in the amount of 
$67,718 per year, to be paid in monthly installments of $5,643, which was to cover utilities and 
janitorial services.   
 
Prior to approving the lease, County Manager Geouque presented an attached resolution that, once 
adopted, would need to be advertised in the Watauga Democrat for ten (10) days as required by 
the general statutes prior to the lease being brought back to the Board for action. 
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to adopt the resolution and 
authorize the advertisement of the resolution for ten days as presented by the County Manager. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
F. Interior and Exterior Signage for New Valle Crucis Elementary School 

County Manager Geouque presented the proposed interior and exterior signage for the new Valle 
Crucis Elementary School.  The total cost from APCO Carolinas was $85,436.17 and adequate 
funding was available in the current project budget to cover the expense.   
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the contract with 
APCO Carolinas in the amount of $85,436.17 for interior and exterior signage for the new Valle 
Crucis Elementary School.  
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
G. Boards and Commissions 

County Manager Geouque presented the following: 
 
Commissioner Appointments to Boards & Commissions 
Each Commissioner nominates a representative to the Watauga County Planning Board whose 
terms run concurrent with the term of the appointing Commissioner.  Commissioner Marsh would 
like to appoint Neal Winebarger as his district representative on the Watauga County Planning 
Board.  Action must be taken by the entire Board of Commissioners to make these appointments. 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

11



Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to waive the second reading 
and appoint Neal Winebarger as the district representative on the Watauga County Planning Board 
for Commissioner Marsh. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees 
 

The Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees has recommended Lisa Cooper for reappointment 
and Matthew Vincent for appointment as Board Trustees.  Each of their terms would be effective 
January 1, 2025, through December 31, 2027.  These were first readings and, therefore, no action 
was taken. 
 
Watauga County Board of Adjustment 
The Board of Adjustment term of Ms. Sue Sweeting has expired.  The revised NC General Statute 
160D no longer makes any mention of appointments representing zoned areas of counties with 
partial-county zoning; therefore, it is not necessary to consider where appointees live.  The term 
will be for three years.  There are no recommendations from the Board of Adjustment at this time 
and no volunteer applications have been received. 
 
Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission 
The term of Erin Welsh has expired on the Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission.  The 
member must live in the Historic District or be a current member representative of the Valle Crucis 
Community Council.  The Preservation Commission has not made a recommendation at this time.  
A volunteer application has been received from Mr. Bryant Ward who is interested in serving.  
This is a first reading and, therefore, no action is required. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to waive the first reading the 
appoint Mr. Bryant Ward to the Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
H. Announcements 

County Manager Geouque announced that the High Country Council of Governments’ 49th Annual 
Banquet was postponed due to Hurricane Helene and has been rescheduled for Friday, March 7, 
2025, from 6:00 to 9:00 P.M. in the Grandview Ballroom at the Northwest End Zone Facility, 
Appalachian State University.  The deadline to RSVP is February 21, 2025. 
 
Commissioner Marsh announced that there would be an After Action Debrief with all Emergency 
Services in the area in regards to Hurricane Helene on Saturday February 22, 2025, at the Caldwell 
Community College Campus. 

020425 BCC Meeting

12



CLOSED SESSION 
At 6:12 P.M., Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) [including discussion on 
24 CVM 198 Brandy Boyles and Keller vs. North America], Land Acquisition, per G. S. 143-
318.11(a)(5)(i), and Personnel Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6). 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to resume the open meeting at 
9:09 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

ADJOURN 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
9:10 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Hodges, Marsh) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Greene) 

 
Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 4, 2025, AGENDA 
 
 
 
  

020425 BCC Meeting

15



Blank Page 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

16



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Public Comment will last up to 1-hour dependent upon the number of speakers. 
 
 
 
  

020425 BCC Meeting

17



Blank Page 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

18



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

WATAUGA COUNTY SCHOOLS FY 2024-2025 CIP FUNDS REQUEST 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Joseph Nash, Watauga County Schools Finance Director, will request the release of $550,000 
from the County’s CIP reserve.   The projects are attached. 
 
Board approval is required to release the funds as requested. 
 
 
 
  

020425 BCC Meeting

19



 
 

 

 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Margaret E. Gragg Education Center 

175 Pioneer Trail, Boone, NC 28607 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Commissioners, Watauga County 

 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Joseph Nash, Finance Officer 

February 4, 2025 

2024-25 CIP Funds Request 

 
Watauga County Schools respectfully requests approval for the use of $550,000 from the county’s CIP  
funds reserved for the school district.  The list of projects for funding is as follows: 
 
 
 

CIP Reserves Project Amount 

Classroom Presentation Technology $80,000 

HVAC/Sewer Pumps Repair/Replace  25,000 

Technology Devices Repair/Replace  300,000 

Heavy Vehicle Lift Install/Repair  75,000 

Security Cameras  25,000 

HP, BR, GV Classrooms, Bathrooms, Decking 
Renovations 

 15,000 

Playground Updates/Renovations  30,000 

 
 

Thank you for your continued support of Watauga County Schools. 
 
 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

20



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

WATAUGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Monica Caruso, County Librarian, will present the Watauga County Public Library Annual 
Report. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
  

020425 BCC Meeting

21



WATAUGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

2024 Highlights  

020425 BCC Meeting

22



Adult Services

020425 BCC Meeting

23



• 2nd Grade Field Trips*

• 8 Word Mystery contest

• Boone Boo

• Boonerang

• Buildfest

• Creative Writing Club

• Eclipse Party

• Lego Club

• Mac the Therapy Dog

• Mario Day

• PBS/Rootle

• Santa & Grinch Storytimes

• Scavenger Hunts*

• SUMMER READING! + Reading & Rolling Program

• Taylor Swift Party

• Three weekly storytimes*
o Bilingual Stories
o Hickory Ridge Hickory Museum
o Local Dentists
o Other special guests

• Try It Club

Youth Services

Summer Reading Programs:
• Grandfather Mountain
• Audubon Society*
• Blue Ridge Parkway
• Turchin Center
• Eco Explorer
• Foam Party
• Weekly Art
• Mario Mondays

*pictured

020425 BCC Meeting

24



Western
Watauga 

Branch Library

Bi-Monthly Storytimes

Summer Science Outreach

Book Club

Three weeks with National Guard

Solar Eclipse Event Summer Learning FOAM party

020425 BCC Meeting

25



Volunteers, 2024

Volunteer hours 
valued at $146,049

020425 BCC Meeting

26



Grants, 2024

LSTA Federal Grant  -
Outreach vehicle

Watauga Endowment Council - Patio 
Project

NC Dept. of Equity & Digital 
Inclusion - Digital Champion 

020425 BCC Meeting

27



LOCAL NDING

776,045

69.860
22,402

7647
22,603

TOTAL = 898,168

County
Friends/Endowment Donations
Other Grants
Investment Earnings/Misc. Revenue
Fines/Fees

Expenditures = $861,969

771,766

46,197

33,520
10,486

TOTAL = 857,090

Personnel Operations Collections Programming

FY 2024Revenue = $898,557 020425 BCC Meeting

28



Circulation, Door Count, Library Cards, & WIFI 

Main Library WW Branch

Circulation Door Count Lib Cards Wifi Usage

2024 15263 6,904 1561 25710
2023 13851 6107 1508 8598
2022 15264 5880 1465 6185

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

Circulation Door Count Lib Cards WIFI

2024 175332 113749 36558 77470
2023 181285 106699 34630 74278
2022 183297 95146 32587 86890

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

200000

020425 BCC Meeting

29



Looking Ahead

STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS, 2022-2026  

• Organizational Excellence 

• Robust Services to Underserved Communities 

• Increased Access and Innovative Programming

• Build High Quality Print, Digital, and 
Technology Collections 

GRANTS , 2024 – 2026 

• Digital Champion  Grant 

• LSTA Modular Conference Rooms 
Grant (25-26)

• NC Dept. of Commerce Grant

020425 BCC Meeting

30



Thank you t0 Watauga County for 
your partnership and support! 

020425 BCC Meeting

31



Blank Page 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

32



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

PROPOSED APPROPRIATION OF STATE FUNDS FOR SENIOR CENTERS 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte will request the Board accept Senior Center General Purpose funding in the 
amount of $14,855.  Both Senior Centers are eligible; with $11,100 for the L. E. Harrill Senior 
Center and $3,755 for the Western Watauga Community Center.  The funds require a 25% match 
totaling $4,952 that is included in the agency’s current budget. 
 
Board action is required to accept the Senior Center General Purpose funding in the amount of 
$14,855 with the required 25% match. 
 
 
 
  

020425 BCC Meeting

33



       Watauga County Project on Aging 
                  132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A ●  Boone, North Carolina 28607 
                                               Website:  www.wataugacounty.org/aging    angie.boitnotte@watgov.org 

        Telephone 828-265-8090   Fax 828-264-2060   TTY 1-800-735-2962     Voice 1-800-735-8262 or 711 
                                          

 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM:  Angie Boitnotte, Director 
 
DATE:  January 27, 2025 
 
SUBJ:  Appropriation of State Funds for Senior Centers 
 
The Project on Aging received notification that each of the County’s two senior centers 
are eligible to receive Senior Center General Purpose funding in the amount of $14,855 
on a reimbursement basis through an appropriation from the NC General Assembly and 
the Division of Aging.  The L. E. Harrill Senior Center, as a Center of Excellence, is 
eligible to receive $11,100 which requires a 25% local match of $3,700.  The Western 
Watauga Community Center is eligible to receive $3,755, which requires a 25% local 
match of $1,252.  The required match is present in the agency’s FY25 budget.  
 
These funds can be used to support and develop programming and general operations 
including salaries, supplies, equipment, capital outlay, and other operating costs.  We 
plan to use the funds to purchase equipment and supplies, and to cover other various 
ongoing expenses.  
 
I recommend acceptance of these funds.  I will plan to be present for discussion and 
questions. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 

 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

34



CONTRACT Between 
HIGH COUNTRY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

AREA AGENCY ON AGING 
and 

Watauga County Project on Aging 

Federal Tax ID# 56-6001816 

Lois E. Harrill Senior Center 
Name of Senior Center Being Funded 

I. Parties to the Contract: 

This Contract, made and entered into this 7th day of January by and 
between Watauga County Project on Aging, hereinafter referred to as 
"Contractor'' and the High Country Council of Governments, Area Agency 
on Aging hereinafter referred to as the "Agency". This Contract shall insure 
to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors 
and legal representatives. 

II. Effective Period: 

This Contract period is effective July 1, 2024 and terminates on June 30, 
2025, with the option to extend if mutually agreed, through a written 
amendment as provided for in Part XI. 

Ill. Independent Status: 

The parties hereto acknowledge that they are independent entities. Neither 
party shall represent itself as agent or employee of the other, nor shall 
either party bind or represent that it has the ability to bind the other to any 
monetary or legal obligation. The parties hereto acknowledge that neither 
this nor any provision hereof shall be deemed to create a partnership or 
joint venture between the parties. 

IV. Liabilities and Legal Obligations: 

Each party hereto agrees to be responsible for its own liabilities and that of 
its officers, employees, agents, or representatives arising out of this 
Contract including fiscal responsibility for deviations from this Contract. 

1 

020425 BCC Meeting

35



V. Administrators for the Contract: 

The persons named below shall be administrators for the respective parties 
and shall be the persons to whom notices provided for in this Contract shall 
be given and to whom matters relating to administration or interpretation of 
this Contract shall be addressed. Either party may change its administrator 
or his address or his telephone number by written notice to the other party. 

For the Agency: 

Tim Price, Compliance Officer 
High Country Area Agency on Aging 
468 New Market Boulevard 
Boone, N.C. 28607 
(828) 265-5434 Ext. 122 

For the Contractor: 

Angie Boitnotte, Director 
Watauga Project on Aging 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8090 

VI. General Provisions: 

A The place of this Contract, controlling its status and form, shall be 
Watauga County, North Carolina, and all matters relating to the 
validity, construction, interpretation, and enforcement of this 
Contract shall be determined in the courts of Watauga County. 
Any Suit in federal district court relating to this Contract shall be 
brought in the United States District Court, Western District of 
North Carolina. 

B. This Contract supersedes all prior agreements between the parties 
and expresses their entire understanding with respect to the 
transactions contemplated herein. Any prior agreements, verbal 
understandings or otherwise, shall be deemed merged herein. In 
witness whereof, the Contractor and the Agency have executed 
this Agreement in duplicate originals, one of which is retained by 
each of the parties. 

2 

020425 BCC Meeting

36



VII. Responsibilities of the Agency: 

Make payment to the Contractor as described in Section IX of this Contract. 

VIII. Responsibilities of the Contractor: 

A. The Contractor shall expend the award in keeping with the 
attached description indicating how funding will be utilized. 
Funding will not be disbursed until this description is received by 
the Agency. 

B. The Contractor is to use or expend state funds only for the 
purposes for which they were appropriated by the General 
Assembly. If the Contractor is a governmental entity, such entity is 
subject to the provisions of the requirements of OMS Circular A-
133 and the NC Single Audit Implementations Act of 1987. 
Furthermore, contractor will comply with reporting requirements as 
defined by the G.S. 146-6.2. 

C. Submitting any other plans, reports, documents or other products 
that the Agency may specify. 

D. Complying with Title VI and VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) and all requirements imposed 
by Federal regulations, rules and guidelines issued pursuant to 
these Titles for both personnel employed and clients served. 

E. None of the work to be performed under this contract which 
involves the specialized skill or expertise of the Contractor shall be 
subcontracted without prior approval of the Agency's contract 
administer. 

F. The disclosure of information concerning services, applicants or 
recipients obtained in connection with the performance of this 
contract is prohibited. The use of such information is restricted to 
the performance of the Contractor's responsibilities specified in 
this contract. 

3 

020425 BCC Meeting

37



G. The Contractor expressly states that he presently has no interest 
and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would 
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services 
required to be performed under this contract. The Contractor shall 
not employ any person having such interest during the 
performance of this contract. The Contractor further agrees to 
notify the Agency in writing of any instance that might have the 
appearance of a conflict of interest. Upon execution of this 
contract and prior to disbursement of funds, the Contractor shall 
submit to the Agency a notarized copy of the Contractor's policy 
addressing conflict of interest in accordance with G.S. 143-6.1 
Section 13. 

IX. Payment for Services: 

Payment to the contractor will be conducted in the following manner: 

A. The High Country Council of Governments will pay the contractor 
$11, 100. State funds will not exceed 75% of total expenditures. 
The total match requirement is $3,700. Total funding, including 
minimum local match is $14,800. 

B. The High Country Council of Governments will reimburse the 
contractor for expenditures. Reimbursement will be made when 
the senior center expenditure information is entered into the 
ARMS. As with all other non-unit reimbursement funding, the 
contractor is to send invoices or other backup documentation to 
the AAA monthly or as expenditures are incurred and entered into 
ARMS. This funding is to be coded as Senior Center general 
purpose funds, service code 176, fund source code 7. 

c. Because funding is provided on a reimbursement basis, all 
requests for reimbursement must be submitted to the AAA by May 
31, 2025. 

o. It is understood and agreed between the Contractor and the 
Agency that the payment of compensation specified in this 
agreement, its continuation or any renewal or extension thereof, is 
dependent upon and subject to the allocation or appropriation of 
funds to the Agency for the purpose set forth in this agreement. 

4 

020425 BCC Meeting

38



































































































































































































































































































RESOLUTION 
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT 

North Caro lina Division of Emergency Management 

Organization Name (hereafter named Organization) Disaster Number: 
Watauga County DR-4827-NC 

Applicant's State Cognizant Agency for Single Audit purposes (If Cognizant Agency is not assigned, please indicate): 
C. Randolph , CPA PLLC 

Applicant's Fisca l Year (FY) Start 
Month: July Day: 1 

Applicant's Federal Employer's Identification Number 
56 - 6001816 

Applicant's Federal Information Processing Standards (F IPS) Number 
37 - 189 -

PRIMARY AGENT SECONDARY AGENT 

Agent' s Name William Holt Agent's Name 
Shane Garland 

Organization 
Watauga County 

Organization 
Watauga County 

Official Position ES Director Official Position 
Fire Marshal 

Mail ing Address Mailing Address 
184 Hodges Gap Road Suite D 184 Hodges Gap Road Suite D GI GI 

City ,State, Z ip Boone, NC 28607 City ,State, Zip 
Boone, NC 28607 

Daytime Telephone 
(828) 264-4235 

Daytime Telephone 
(828) 264-4235 

Facsimile Number Facsimi le Number 

Pager or Ce llular Number Pager or Ce ll ular Number 

BE IT RESOLVED BY the govern ing body of the Organization (a public entity duly organized under the laws of the State of North Carolina) 
that the above-named Primary and Secondary Agents are hereby authorized to execute and fi le applications for federal and/or state assistance on 
behalf of the Organization for the purpose ofobtaining certain state and federa l financial assistance under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief 
& Emergency Assistance Act, (Public Law 93-288 as amended) or as otherwise ava ilable. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the above-named 
agents are authorized to represent and act for the Organization in all dea lings wi th the State of North Carolina and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency for all matters pertaining to such disaster ass istance required by the grant agreements and the assura nces printed on the 
reverse side hereof. BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED THAT the above-named agents are author ized to act severally. PASSED AND 
APPROVED this day of 20 

GOVERNING BODY CERTIFYING OFFICIAL 

Name and Title Braxton Eggers, Chairman Name Deron Geouque 

Name and Title Official Position County Manager 

Name and Title Daytime Telephone (828) 265-8000 

CERTIFICATION 

I, , (Name) duly appointed and (Title) 
of the Governing Body, do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed and 
approved by the Govern ing Body of (Organization) on the day of 

,20_ 

Date: Signature: 
Rev. 06/02 

020425 BCC Meeting

183



APPLICANT ASSURANCES 

The applicant hereby assures and certifies that it will comply with the FEMA regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements including OMB's Circulars No. A-95 and A-102, and FMC 
7 4-4, as they relate to the application, acceptance and use of Federal funds for this Federally assisted project. Also, the Applicant gives assurance and certifies with respect to and as a 
condition for the grant that: 

1. It possesses legal authority to apply for the grant, and to finance and construct the 
proposed facilities; that a resolution , motion or similar action has been duly adopted or 
passed as an official act of the applicanfs governing body, authorizing the filing of the 
application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing 
and authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in 
connection with the application and to provide such additional information as may be required. 

2. It will comply with the provisions of: Executive Order 11988, relating to Floodplain 
Management and Executive Order 11990, relating to Protection of Wetlands. 

3. It will have sufficient funds available to meet the non-Federal share of the cost for 
construction projects. Sufficient funds will be available when construction is completed to 
assure effective operation and maintenance of the facility for the purpose constructed. 

4. It will not enter into a construction contract(s) for the project or undertake 
other activities until the conditions of the grant program(s) have been met. 

5. It will provide and maintain competent and adequate architectural engineering 
supervision and inspection at the construction site to insure that the completed 
work conforms with the approved plans and specifications; that it will furnish 
progress reports and such other information as the Federal granter agency may need. 

6. It will operate and maintain the facility in accordance with the minimum 
standards as may be required or prescribed by the applicable Federal, State 
and local agencies for the maintenance and operation of such facilities. 

7. It will give the granter agency and the Comptroller General, through any 
authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, 
books, papers, or documents related to the grant. 

8. It will require the facility to be designed to comply with the "American 
Standard Specifications for Making Buildings and Facilities Accessible to, 
and Usable by the Physically Handicapped," Number A117.1-1961 , as modified 
(41 CFR 101-17-7031). The applicant will be responsible for conducting 
inspections to insure compliance with these specifications by the contractor. 

9. It will cause work on the project to be commenced within a reasonable time 
after receipt of notification from the approving Federal agency that funds 
have been approved and will see that work on the project will be prosecuted 
to completion with reasonable diligence. 

10. It will not dispose of or encumber its title or other interests in the site and 
facilities during the period of Federal interest or while the Government holds 
bonds, whichever is the longer. 

11 . It agrees to comply with Section 311 , P.L. 93-288 and with Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P .L 83-352) and in accordance with Title VI of the Act, 
no person in the United States shall , on the ground of race, color, or national 
origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the 
applicant receives Federal financial assistance and will immediately take any 
measures necessary to effectuate this agreement. If any real property or structure 
is provided or improved with the aid of Federal financial assistance extended to the 
Applicant, this assurance shall obligate the Applicant, or in the case of any transfer 
of such property, any transferee, for the period during which the real property or 
structure is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is extended 
or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits. 

12. It will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions 
for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire 
for private gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have 
family, business, or other ties. 

13. It will comply with the requirements of Title II and Title Ill of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) 
which provides for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced as a result of 
Federal and Federally assisted programs. 

14. It will comply with all requirements imposed by the Federal granter agency 
concerning special requirements of law, program requirements, and other 
administrative requirements approved in accordance with OMB Circular A-102, 
P.L. 93-288 as amended, and applicable Federal Regulations. 

15. It will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act which limit the political 
activity of employees. 

16. It will comply with the minimum wage and maximum hours provisions of the 
Federal Fair Labor Standards Act, as they apply to hospital and educational 
institution employees of State and local governments. 

17. (To the best of his/her knowledge and belief) the disaster relief work described on 
each Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Project Application for which 
Federal Financial assistance is requested is eligible in accordance with the criteria 
contained in 44 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 206, and applicable FEMA 
Handbooks. 

18. The emergency or disaster relief work therein described for which Federal 
Assistance is requested hereunder does not or will not duplicate benefits 
received for the same loss from another source. 

19. It will (1) provide without cost to the United States all lands, easements and 
rights-of-way necessary for accomplishments of the approved work; (2) hold and 
save the United States free from damages due to the approved work or Federal funding. 

20. This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining 
any and all Federal grants, loans, reimbursements, advances, contracts, property, 
discounts of other Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the 
Applicant by FEMA, that such Federal Financial assistance will be extended in reliance 
on the representations and agreements made in this assurance and that the United 
States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This 
assurance is binding on the applicant, its successors, transferees, and assignees, 
and the person or persons whose signatures appear on the reverse as authorized to 
sign this assurance on behalf of the applicant. 

21 . It will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of 
the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Public Law 93-234, 87 Stat. 975, approved 
December 31 , 1973. Section 102(a) requires, on and after March 2, 1975, the purchase 
of flood insurance in communities where such insurance is available as a condition for 
the receipt of any Federal financial assistance for construction or acquisition purposes 
for use in any area that has been identified by the Director, Federal Emergency 
Management Agency as an area having special flood hazards. The phrase "Federal 
financial assistance" includes any form of loan, grant, guaranty, insurance payment, 
rebate, subsidy, disaster assistance loan or grant, or any other form of direct or indirect 
Federal assistance. 

22. It will comply with the insurance requirements of Section 314, PL 93-288, to 
obtain and maintain any other insurance as may be reasonable, adequate, 
and necessary to protect against further loss to any property which was 
replaced, restored, repaired, or constructed with this assistance. 

23. It will defer funding of any projects involving flexible funding until FEMA 
makes a favorable environmental clearance, if this is required. 

24. It will assist the Federal grantor agency in its compliance with Section 106 of 
the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, (16 U.S.C. 470), 
Executive Order 11593, and the Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1966 (16 U S.C 469a-1 et seq.) by (a) consulting with the State Historic 
Preservation Officer on the conduct of investigations, as necessary, to identify 
properties listed in or eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic 
places that are subject to adverse effects (see 36 CFR Part 800.8) by the activity, 
and notifying the Federal granter agency of the existence of any such properties, 
and by (b) complying with all requirements established by the Federal granter agency 
to avoid or mitigate adverse effects upon such properties. 

25. It will, for any repairs or construction financed herewith , comply with 
applicable standards of safety, decency and sanitation and in conformity 
with applicable codes, specifications and standards; and, will evaluate the 
natural hazards in areas in which the proceeds of the grant or loan are to be 
used and take appropriate action to mitigate such hazards, including safe 
land use and construction practices. 

STA TE ASSURANCES 

The State agrees to take any necessary action within State capabilities to require 
compliance with these assurances and agreements by the applicant or to assume 
responsibility to the Federal government for any deficiencies not resolved to the 
satisfaction of the Regional Director. 

020425 BCC Meeting

184



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Resolution Authorizing the Advertisement of A Lease with Red Cross 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
The American Red Cross is requesting a lease for space at the East Annex due to the relocation 
from the Health Department building.  The request is for a three (3) year term to start March 4, 
2025 through February 29, 2028.  Rent is one dollar ($1) per year.  Should the Board wish to grant 
the request, the attached resolution would need to be approved and authorization given to advertise 
for 10 days' public notice.  Upon completion, the lease will be brought back to the Board March 
4, 2025 for Board approval.   
 
Board direction is required. 
 
 
 
 
  

020425 BCC Meeting

185



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

Resolution of Watauga County Board of County Commissioners 
 
Pursuant to NCGS 160A-272, notice is hereby given that at the regular commissioner meeting of 
the Watauga County Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2025, the Watauga County 
Board of County Commissioners adopted a resolution which authorized Deron T. Geouque, 
County Manager, of Watauga County to lease to the American National Red Cross that certain 
office space in the building known as the East Annex Building (the "Leased Premises") located at 
331 Queen Street, Suite 102, Boone, NC 28607 (the "Property") in Watauga County, North 
Carolina, and being approximately 296 square feet of office space, for a term of eight (8) years, 
unless either Watauga County or the American National Red Cross gives written notice no less 
than thirty (30) days that the other party intends to terminate the lease early.  The rent to be 
paid by the American National Red Cross to Watauga County during the term of the lease is One 
Dollar ($1.00) per annum.  The lease shall become effective ten (10) days after the publication of 
this notice and formal adoption of the lease by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
ADOPTED this the 4th day of February, 2025. 
 
 
Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of County Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

186



 

STANDARD FORM OF SPACE LICENSE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE TEMPORARY USE OF 

FACILITIES  
 

(CUBICLE OR ROOM) 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
Effective Date: The date upon which this Agreement is effective, which will be the later 
of the dates of the signatures of Licensor and Licensee on this Form. 
 
Owner of the Facility (the “Licensor”):  
 
Watauga County 
 

 
Legal Name of the User of the Room (the “Licensee”):  
 
The American National Red Cross, a nonprofit corporation, a Federally chartered 
instrumentality of the United States, and a body corporate and politic under the laws of 
the United States (36 U.S.C. §§ 300101-300111 (2007)). 
 
Date Upon which the Licensee May Begin to Use the Room (the “Start Date”): 
 
3/4/2025 
 
Date Upon Which the Licensee Must Vacate the Room (the “Expiration Date”):   
 
2/29/2028 
 
Building Owner and Licensor’s Business Address and Contact Info:  
 
Watauga County, 814 West King St, Boone, NC 28607 
 
Room User and Licensee’s Business Address and Contact Info: 
 
9450 SW Gemini Dr, #75048, Beaverton, OR 97008-7105 
real.estate@redcross.org 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

187



 
 
 
 
 

2 

Street Address of the Building Where the Room is Located: 
 
331 Queen Street, Suite 102 Boone, NC, 28607 
 
Permitted Use(s) of Licensed Room (check those applicable):  
 

 General Office 
 Training and/or Testing 
 Storage 

 
Description of Licensed Room:  
  
296 SF office space in the East Annex Building 
 

This Temporary Space License Agreement (the “Agreement”) is dated and intended to 
be effective as of the Effective Date set forth above, and made by and between the 
Licensor and the Licensee named above.  Under the Agreement, the Licensee is 
permitted to use and occupy, on a temporary basis, the space described above (the 
“Room”) in the Building at the Location set forth above (the “Building”).   

1. Grant of License.  Licensor grants Licensee the right to use the Room for the 
Permitted Use(s) described above.  This license includes reasonable ingress and 
egress to and from the Room through the Building’s common areas.  Licensee 
shall not have the right to use any other space in the Building (such as library, 
conference rooms, break room, coffee room) or any equipment belonging to 
Licensor unless the Licensor gives written permission to do so.  This Agreement 
is not a lease and Licensee is granted no leasehold interest in the Room.       

2. Term.  Licensee’s right to use the Premises shall begin on the Start Date and shall 
end on the Expiration Date.    On or before the Expiration Date, Licensee shall 
vacate the Room.  Licensee shall repair all damage caused by Licensee’s 
occupancy, at Licensee’s sole cost and expense. 

3. Early Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement with no penalty 
by providing thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party. 

4. License Fee.  Licensee shall pay, as a license fee, the amount of: 

$1.00 per year 

020425 BCC Meeting

188



 
 
 
 
 

3 

5. Licensee’s Conduct.  Licensee agrees to keep the Room good condition and 
promptly repair all damage to the Premises or the Building caused by Licensee’s 
negligence, and not to disrupt, adversely affect or interfere with other occupants 
of the Building. 

6. Condition of Premises and Building.  Licensor makes no warranty or 
representation about the Room or the Building.  Licensee accepts the same “AS 
IS.”  Licensor is under no obligation to prepare or repair the Room or the 
Building for Licensee. 

7. Indemnification.   Licensee shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify Licensor 
against any legal liability, including reasonable attorney fees, in respect to bodily 
injury, death, and property damage arising from the negligence of the said 
Licensee during its use of the Room.  

8. Insurance.  Licensee shall carry the following insurance coverage: 

A. Commercial General Liability with an occurrence limit of at least one-million 
dollars ($1,000,000) and an aggregate limit of at least two-million dollars 
($2,000,000); 

B. Commercial Automobile Liability with a combined single limit of at least one-
million dollars ($1,000,000); 

C. Workers Compensation coverage with statutory limits for the jurisdiction in 
which the premises are located and Employers’ Liability with limits of at least 
one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident, one million dollars 
($1,000,000.00) disease – each employee and one million dollars 
($1,000,000.00) disease – policy limit. 

9. Licensor’s Right to Revoke License. Upon reasonable prior written notice to 
Licensee, Licensor may revoke the license represented by this Agreement if 
Licensee (a) fails to pay any fee or payment required hereunder or (b) breaches 
any other obligation hereunder and such breach continues after written notice 
from Licensor describing same.  If this license is so revoked, Licensee shall 
forthwith vacate the Room in a neat and orderly manner.  Licensor shall have all 
rights and remedies available to it under applicable law.  

10. No Assignment.   Licensee shall not, and shall not have any right to, assign or 
transfer, or sublicense this Agreement.  Licensor shall have no obligation to 
consider or approve any such transfer, regardless of the circumstances. 

020425 BCC Meeting

189



 
 
 
 
 

4 

11. Casualty or Condemnation Affecting Premises.  Notwithstanding anything in 
this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that damage or casualty to all or a 
part of the Room, this License shall terminate and Licensee shall have no right to 
restoration of the Room or to receive any compensation whatsoever. 

12. Notice.  Notice shall be deemed to have been duly given three (3) business days 
after having been mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, 
to the party’s address set forth at the beginning of the Agreement, or upon 
receipt if delivered by hand or recognized overnight delivery service.  Either 
party may change its address for the purpose of notice hereunder by providing 
the other party with notice of the new address. 

13. Governing Law and Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed under the laws of the state in which the Building is located.  This 
Agreement shall be binding on the parties and their respective, successors, 
transferees and assigns. 

14. Brokers/Consultants.   Licensor and Licensee each represent to the other that 
there is no broker in this transaction.  Each party shall indemnify the other 
against the claims of any broker. 

15. Authority.  Each party represents and warrants that it has the full power and 
authority to execute, deliver and perform under this Agreement.     

 
 
 

Signatures are on the following page. 
 
 
 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

190



 
 
 
 
 

5 

 

AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS 
AND “LICENSEE:” 
 
By:  ______________________________ 

(Signature) 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 
 

 BUILDING OWNER AND 
“LICENSOR:” 
 
By:  ______________________________ 

(Signature) 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

191



AGREEMENT FOR LICENSE TERMINATION 

This Agreement for License Termination (this “Agreement”) is made effective as of the date 
signed by and between Watauga County (hereinafter referred to as “Licensor”) and The American 
National Red Cross (hereinafter referred to as “Licensee”). 

WHEREAS, by License Agreement dated March 24, 2020 (the “License”) Licensor leased to 
Licensee the property and improvements known as 331 Queen Street, Suite 102, Boone, NC,  as 
more particularly described in the License (the “Premises”); and  

WHEREAS, the term of the License expires on February 29, 2028; and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to set forth their understanding of the terms and conditions under 
which Licensee and Licensor have agreed that the License shall terminate before the stated end of the 
Term.  

NOW THEREFORE, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto, intending to be legally bound, do hereby agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.   The forgoing recitals are true and correct, and are incorporated
herein by this reference.

2. Early Termination.  Licensor and Licensee agree that the License shall terminate as of 11:59 
p.m. on February 29, 2028.  Except for Licensee’s obligations as set forth in this Agreement, 
Licensee shall have no other obligation to Licensor with respect to the condition of the 
Premises or the obligation to pay rent.

3. Possession.  On February 29, 2025, Licensee will surrender possession of the Premises in 
the condition called for in the License. Licensor has inspected the Premises and is satisfied 
with the condition thereof as of the date of this Agreement.

4. No Default. Licensee and Licensor each hereby acknowledges that neither party is in default
under the License as of the date hereof, and that each is unaware of any condition or
circumstance which, but for the passage of time or delivery of notice, or both, would
constitute a default under the License.

5. Brokerage.   Licensor and Licensee each represents that it has not entered into any
agreement with, or otherwise had and dealing with, any broker, agent or finder in
connection with the negotiation or execution of this Agreement which could form the basis
of any claim by any such broker, agent or finder for a brokerage fee or commission, finder’s
fee, or any other compensation of any kind or nature.

6. Binding Effect.  All of the covenants in this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all
covenants of the License as modified hereby, shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives and permitted
successors and assigns.

020425 BCC Meeting

192



ARC 11/14 

7. Effectiveness.  The submission of this Agreement shall not constitute an offer, and this
Agreement shall not be effective and binding unless and until fully executed and delivered
by each of the parties hereto.

8. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall constitute an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement.
The Agreement may be signed manually or by electronic means.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first set forth 
below. 

LICENSEE 

The American National Red Cross 

By: 

(Signature) 
Name: 

Title: 

LICENSOR 

By: 

(Signature) 
Name: 

Title: 

020425 BCC Meeting

193



Blank Page 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

194



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Referral of Fire Appendices to Planning Board  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  
 
Per Commissioner request, the recently adopted Fire Appendices are being requested to be 
reviewed by the Planning Board.  
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.    
  

020425 BCC Meeting

195



Blank Page 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

196



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Annual Pre-Budget Retreat Tentative Agenda 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
A draft agenda is enclosed for Board review.  Per Commissioner request, the Sheriff’s Office has 
been invited to present at the retreat. County staff have started the process of preparing and 
compiling the information for the retreat. Please feel free to contact me during the upcoming weeks 
should you have any questions or require additional information. 
 
 
 
  

020425 BCC Meeting

197



TENTATIVE RETREAT AGENDA 
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

COMMUNITY ROOM 
WATAUGA COUNTY COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTER, BOONE, NC 

 

FEBRUARY 27 & FEBRUARY 28, 2025 
 

 

TIME TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

 THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2025   

 12:00 PM OPENING REMARKS AND LUNCH MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
 1:30 PM FY 2025 REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF FY 2026 BUDGET MS. MISTY WATSON 1 
 A.  Revenues   
 B. Expenditures   
 C.     Sheriff’s Report SHERIFF HAGAMAN  
 D. Debt Service Report   
 E.  Budget Calendar   
 F.  Special Appropriations   
 2:00 PM REVIEW OF CURRENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) MR. DERON GEOUQUE &  
 A.  Current CIP Status Report MR. ROBERT MARSH  
 B.  Valle Crucis Elementary School   
 C.  County Facilities Assessment Update   
 D.  Roof Repairs Update  

1. Human Services 
a. Human Services Renovations  

2. Law Enforcement 

  

 E.  ARPA Projects/Funding 
1. Broadband $7,750,000 
2. Kill/Chill Water/Sewer  $500,000   

 
 

DR. JIM HAMILTON 

 

 F. 911/Medic/Emergency Services Facility   
 G. Brookshire Work Force Housing   
 H. Library   
 I. School Facilities   
 3:15 PM BREAK   
 3:30 PM SANITATION MATTERS MR. CHRIS MARRIOTT   
 A. Facility Upgrades   
 B. Recycling   
 4:15 PM TAX MATTERS MR. TYLER RASH  
 A. 2027 Revaluation Updates   
 B. Licensing   
 4:30 PM APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH   
 A. District Matters MS. JENNIFER GREENE  
 B. Opioid Plan MS. LINDSEY SULLIVAN  
 5:00 PM WATAUGA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MR. JASON WALKER  
 5:15 PM WATAUGA MEDICS MR. CRAIG SULLIVAN  
 A. Annual Report   
 B. Future Needs   
  5:30 PM COUNTY MANAGER’S SUMMARY MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
 6:00 PM RECESS UNTIL FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 28 AT 9:00 AM   

020425 BCC Meeting

198















AGENDA ITEM 11: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Land Acquisition per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i) 
 
 
 

020425 BCC Meeting

205


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the February 4, 2025, Agenda
	Public Comment
	Watauga County Schools FY 2024-2025 CIP Funds Request
	Watauga County Public Library Annual Report
	Proposed Appropriation of State Funds for Senior Centers
	Emergency Services Matters
	A.  Bid Award for Comprehensive Disaster Recovery Management Services
	B.  Proposed Resolution Authorizing the Disaster Applicant's Form

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Proposed Resolution Authoizing the Advertisement of A Lease with Red Cross
	B.  Referral of Fire Appendices to Planning Board
	C.  Annual Pre-Budget Retreat Tentative Agenda
	D.  Boards and Commissions
	E.  Announcements

	Break
	Closed Session



